
UNITI:!D STATES ENVIRONMENTJ1U. PBOTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 1)( 


75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, ell 94105 


SEP 30 2010 Certified Mail No. 7007 2560 0001 7660 607f: 
Return Receipt Requested 

Mr. Bob Marchand 
General Manager 
US Ecology 
P.O. Box 578 
Beatty, NV 89003 

Re: 	 Consent A.greement and Final Order 
In the Matter of US Ecology 

Dear Mr. Marchand: 

Please find enclosed the final executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CA/FO) that 
you entered into on behalf of US Ecology, with the United States Environmentd Protection 
Agency, Region IX (EPA). 

This CA/FO sets out the tenns tor resolution of the ResoufCI~ Conservation and R(Jcovl~ry 
Act (RCRA) and Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) administrative civil pc!nalty action:t1 the 
matter of US Ecology. 

Your full compliance with the payment temlS of this CA/FO and completion of an 1asks 
required by this CA/FO will close this case. Ifyou have any questions regarding the mles, 
regulations and statutes governing your operations which are implemented by EPA or v.rhich 
govern the proceedings terminated by the enclosed document, please contact I\.1:r. Kaoru 
Morimoto or Mr. Christopher Rollins of my staff at (415) 972-3306 or 415-947-4166, 
respectively, or AssistaJt1lt Regional Counsel, Mr. Stephen Beminger at (415) 972~3909. 

Sincerely, 

JefT Scott, Director 
Waste Management Division 

Enclosure 

cc: 	 Eric Noack, NDEP 
Mike Richardson, NDEP 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTALPROTEC1?t~~~p1~Gf'tI12:~) J 
REGION]X ' 

75 HAWTHORNE STREET II. . .. ; .... ,'i).; I/. 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 i\,EGiCii'!:~L. :·i~.'\iW'lli CLEi:,) 

In the matter of: 	 ) U.S. EPA Docb:t Nos. 
) RCRA-09-2010·· <'J O!~ and: 
) TSCA-09-2010- 00/0 

) 
US ECOLOGY NEVADA, INC., ) CONSENT AGREEMENT 

) AND FINAL OBDER PURSUANT 
) TO 40 CFR SECTIONS 22. :l3 and 22.18 
) 
) 

Respondent. 	 ) 

) 


CONSENT AGRI~NT 

A. ~RELIlVUNARY S'[A..TEMENT 

1.' This is a dvil administrative enforcement action instituted pursuant to: Section 
3008(a)(I) ofthe Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"), as amended, 42 U.S.c. 
§6928(a)(1); the Consolidated Rules of Practice Govt~ming the Administrative Assessment of 
Civil Penalties, Issuance ofCompliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Rffvocation, 
Termination or Suspension of Pennits, 40 Code ofFederal Regulations (CFR) Part 22; and 
Section 16(a) of the Toxic Substances Control Act ("TSCA"), 15 U.S.c. §2615(a), for violatkm 
of Section 15 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2614, by failing to comply with implementing regulations 
governing polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs") at 40 CFR l'art 761. Complainant is the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX ("EPA"). 

2. US Ecology Nevada, Inc. ("Respondent") operates a commercial h~~zardous wast:J 
treatment, storage and disposal facility in Nye County, Nevada, approximately e:leven miles 
south ofBeatty, in the Amargosa Desert ("facility"). The £'lcility manages, treats and disposen of 
hazardous waste, PCBs and non-hazardous industrial waste. Respondent leases the property on 
which the facility is located from the State ofNevada. The leased property covers approxima1ely 
80 acres. 

3. EPA and Respondent agree to settle this matter, and Respondent agrees to consent 
to the entry of this Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAIFO"). This CA/PO, which 
contains the elements of a complaint required by 40 CFR §§22.14(a)(1 )-(3) and (8), 
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simultaneously comme:nces and concludes this matt'~r in accordance with 40 CFR §§22.13 and 
22.18. 

4. The parties agree that settlement of the relevant matters without litigation will save 
time and resources, that it is in the public interest, that it is c;onsistent with the provisions and 
objectives of RCRA, TSCA, and applicable regulations, and that entry ofthis CA/FO is the most 
appropriate means ofmsolving such matters. 

5. This action is based on EPA allegations that Respondent violated requirements of 
its permit to operate a commercial hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal facility (NEV 
HW0019) ("Permit"); Gonditions ofRespondent's approval to operate a chemical waste landfill 
("TSCA Approval"); and other statutory and regulatory requirements ofRCRA and TSCA, as set 
forth in detail in Section D of this CAIFO. 

B. RCRA JURI&DICTIQN 

6. The State ofNevada received authorization to administer the hazardous waste 
management program in lieu of the federal program pursuant to Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 
U.S.C. §6926, and 40 CFR Part 271. The authorized program is established pun:uant to the 
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) §459.520 and Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) §§444.g4:! 
through 444.960. The State ofNevada has adopted. 40 CFR Subpart A of Part 2, Subparts A and 
B of Part 124, and Parts 260 through 270 inclusive, by reference in the NAC §444.8632 (with 
exceptions listed in NAC §444.86325, as revised at §444.8633).! 

7. Effective Apri129, 2005, Respondent's permit to operate a commercial hazardous 
waste treatment, storage and disposal facility (NEV HWOO19) ("RCRA Permit'" or "Permit") 
was renewed by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection for a period of five years. 
The facility currently Jis operating under the conditions of the 2005 Permit as modified July 24, 
2006 and March 24, 2008. 

8. The RGRA Pennit, according to its terms, consists of the conditions in the PemLt, 
the facility's 2005 permit renewal application, and the applicable regulations contained in 40 
CFR Parts 260 through 266,270, and 124, and Sections 206, 212, and 224 ofth.e Hazardous and 
Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (P.L. 98-616,98 Stat. 3221). In accordance with 40 CFR 
§270.32(c) and NAC §444.8632, regulations applicable to the facility are those that are in effect 
on the date of the issuance of the Permit. 

9. Respondent's permitted units include tlile following: six hazardom: waste container 
storage units; five PCB storage tanks; a leachate storage tank; three ,~ondensate storage tanks; 
one evaporation pad for truck decontamination; thrlee batch stabilization tanks; a Low 
Temperature Thermal Desorption (LTTD) system; and thr'ee RCRA Subtitle C landfills. 

1 EPA is enforcing the requirements of the authorized program in the NAC in this CA/FO but, for convenience, this 
CA/FO uses federal RCRA. regulatory citations rather than the NAC, which incorporates the federal regulations by 
reference. 
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10. Respondent is a "person" as defined in 40 CFR §260.10. 

11. Respondent is the "operator" of a facility as defined in 40 CF'R §260.1O. 

12. Respondent is engaged in storage, treatment, and disposal of hazardous waste as 
defined in 40 CFR §260.10. 

13. At the facility, Respondent stores and tr,e:ats a number of hazardous wastes as 
defined by Section 1004(5) ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6903(5), and 40 CFR §§260. H) and 261.3, 

• 

14. On April 3, 2007, and on June 24~25, 2008, EPA conducted compliance evaluation 
inspections at the facility (referred to herein as the "2007 CEI" or "2008 eEl"). Based upon the 
findings EPA made during one or both ClEIs, and additional information obtained subsequent 
thereto, EPA determined that Respondent had violated. its ReRA Perrait,and/or statutory or 
regulatory requirement:) of RCRA. 

15. Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6926, provides, inter alia, that authorized state 
hazardous waste prognms are carried out under Subtitle C of RCRA, Section 3001 ofRCRA et 
seq., 42 U.S.c. §6921 et seq. Therefore. a violation of any requirement oflaw u:nder an 
authorized state hazardous waste program is a violati.on of a requirement of Subtitle C of RCR~l. 

16. A violation ofNevada's authorized haz,ardous waste program constitutes a violation 
of Subtitle C ofRCRA and, therefore, a person who violates Nevada's authorized hazardous 
waste program is subject to the powers vested in the EPA Administrator by Section 3008 of 
RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6928. 

17. Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6928, authorizes the EPA Administrator to 
issue orders requiring (:ompliance immediately or within a specified time for violation of any 
requirement of Subtitle: C of RCRA. 

18. The Administrator has delegated the authority under Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 
U.S.C. §6928, to the EPA Regional Administrator for Region IX, who has redelegated this 
authority to the Direct()r of the Waste Management Division. 

C. TSCA JURlSI)lCTION 

19. Pursuant to Section 6(e) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2605(e), EPA promulgated 
regulations governing :PCBs at 40 CFR Part 761. 

20. "PCB" and "PCBs" means any chemical substance that is limited to the biphenyl 
molecule that has been chlorinated to varying degrees or any combination of substances which 
contains such substance. 40 CF'R §761.3. 
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21. "PCB Item" means any PCB Article, PCB Artide Container, PCB Container, PCB 
Equipment, or anything that deliberately or unintentionally c:ontains or has as a part of it amy 
PCB or PCBs. 40 CFR §761.3. 

22. "Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, or association; any state, 
or political subdivision thereof; any interstate body; and any department, agency, or 
instrumentality of the federal government. 40 CFR §761.3. 

23. It is unlawful for any person to fail or refuse to comply with any rul(: promulgated 
or order issued under TSCA Section 5 or 6, 15 U.S.c. §§2604, 2605. TSCA Section 15(1)(C), 
15 U.S.C. §2614(1)(C). 

24.. At all timt:s relevant to this CAlFO, the facility managed and disposed of PCBs 
regulated under TSCA (15 U.S.C. §2601 et seq.) and federal regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto (40 CFR Part 7(1). 

25. The Administrator has delegated the au1jlority to initiate this proceeding under 
TSCA Section 16(a), 15 U.S.C. §2615(a), to the EPA Regional Administrator fOT Region IX, 
who has redelegated this authority to the Director of the Waste Management Division. 

D. ALLEGED VIOLATION§. 

COUN':tl 

Release of Hazardous Waste 


26. Paragraphs 1 through 25 above are incorporated herein by this referlence as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

27. A "release" for purposes ofthe Permit "includ.es any spilling, leaking, pumping, 
pouring, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping, or disposing 
into the environment of any hazardous waste or hazardous c;onstituents." Permit condition 
1.5.15. 

28. Permit condition 2.1 requires Respondent to maintain and operate the facility to 
minimize the possibili1y of a fire, explosion, or any unplanned, sudden or non-sudden releas.e of 
hazardous waste consti.tuents to air, soil, or surface water which could threaten hillman health (II 
the environment, as required by 40 CFR §264.31 and NAC 444.8632. 

29. During the 2007 eEl, EPA inspectors observed a spill of spent hazardous waste 
catalyst onto the ground ofhazardous waste storage area #1 within the facility. 

30. Subsequent to the 2008 CEl, EPA inspectors detennined that releases were 
occurring from the L TrD system. Specifically: 
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a. 	 the facility's February 22, 2008 and Aprill 0, 2008 operating logs (entitled! 
"Supervisor's Daily Notes") demonstrated that smoke was exiting from one or 
more ofthe LTTD system's treatment units; 

b. 	 the smoke contained hazardous waste or hazardous constituents; and! 

c. 	 the smoke was not being captured by any emission control system" thereby 
entering into and releasing into the environment. 

31. Therefore" EPA aUeges that Respondent failed to comply 'mth Permit condition 2.1. 

COUNTl ­
Leaking Container 

32. Paragraphs 1 through 31 above are increlt-porated hereil!l by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

33. Pursuant to Permit condition 3.5, if a container holding hazardous waste is not in 
good condition (e.g., severe rusting, apparent structural defects) or if it begins to leak, the facility 
must transfer the hazardous waste from such container to a container that is in good condition, or 
otherwise manage the waste in compliance with the conditions of the Container :Mm.agement 
Plan and the facility's RCRA Pelmit. See also 40 CFR §264.171. 

34. During the 2007 eEl, EPA inspectors observed one 55~gallon container of chromic 
acid in the facility's liquid container storage area tha.t had been leaking prior to the 2007 eEl. 

35. Respondent processed the container subsequent to the 2007 CEl, ai~ter being 
informed about the presence of the leak. 

36. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed! to comply with Pennit condition ~i"5. 

£OU~I_J. 
Leaking Tank System 

37. Paragraphs 1 through 36 a1bove are inc:orporatc~d herein by this referencle as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

38. Permit condition 4.4. states: "In the event of a leak or a spill from the tank sY8tem, 
from a secondary containment system, or if III system becomes unfit for continued use, US 
Ecology shall comply with Penrdt Application Section 10.9.1 and remove the system from 
service immediately," and, pursuant to condition 4.4.1, "stop the flow of hazardous wast,e into uhe 
system and inspect the: system to determine the cause of the release" (emphasis added). 

39. During the 2007 CEl, EPA inspectors observed: 
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a. 	 a leak in the condensate transfer pump in the LTTD system, the flll:tlction ofwhi.eh 
is to transfer waste to the condensate processing area; 

b. 	 an accumulation of liquid underneath the transfer pump that demonstrated that -f1.;: 
pump ha.d begun leaking before the 2007 CEl[; and 

c. 	 no action was taken by the facility during the 2007 CEI to address this issue. 

40. Therefore" EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with Permit condition 4 A. 

~OUNTS4,~ 

Subpart AA - Control Device F,fl[iciency, Recordkeeping 

41. Paragraphs 1 through 40 above are incOlporated herein by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

42. Pennit condition 6.4.3.2.5 requires a statement signed and dated by the facility, 
certifying that the operating parameters used in the design analysis presented in fhe Permit 
Application reasonably represent the conditions that exist when the hazardous waste 
management unit is or would be operating at the highest load or capacity level reasonably 
expected to occur, 

43. Pennit condition 6.4.3.1.1 n~quires the facility to comply with 40 CFR §264.1Cl3:. 

44. Pursuant1to 40 CFR §264.1035(b), owners and operators must demonstrate the 
organic removal efficitmcy or total organic compound conc,entration achieved by control devices 
by either perfomlance tests (40 CFR §2M.1035(b)(3)) or engineering calculations (40 CPR 
§264.1035(b)(4), and must record the information in the facility operating record. 

45. Documentation required by 40 CPR §264.1035(b)(3) for the performanee test plan, 
includes a description of how it is determined that th(~ planned test would be conducted when the 
hazardous waste management unit is operating at the highest load Of capacity level reasonably 
expected to OCCUf, including the estimated or design flow rate and organic content ofeach vent 
stream. The plan must define the acceptable operating ranges ofkey process and control deyice 
parameters during the test program. In addition, the plan must include a detailed engineering 
description of the clos(~d-vent system and control device, and a detailed description of sampling 
and monitoring procedures, including sampling and monitoring locations in the 8ystem, the 
equipment to be used, sampling and monitoring frequency, and planned analytic:.al procedures for 
sample analysis. 

46. Documentation required by 40 CPR §264.l035(b)(4) also includes a list of all 
information references and sources used in preparing the documentation. 
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47. Documentation required by 40 CFR §264.1035(b)(4) for engineering calculatiom; 
includes a design analysis~ specifications, drawings, schematics, and piping and instrumentation 
diagrams. The design analysis is required to address the vent stream characteristics and control 
device operation parameters. For a condenser, the design analysis is required to: establish the 
design outlet organic compound concentration level; design average temperature of the 
condenser exhaust vent stream; and design average temperature of the coolant fluid at the 
condenser inlet and outlet. For a carbon adsorption system, the design analysis is required to: 
establish the design outlet organic concentration level; capa«;ity of carbon beds; type and 
working capacity of activated carbon used for carbon beds; and design carbon replacement 
interval based on the total carbon working capacity of the control device and source operating 
schedule. 

48. Permit condition 6.4.3.2.2 requires the £'lcihty to document the emission reductions 
achieved by add~on control devices, which include condensl~rs and carbon absorption systems, 
based on engineering calculations or source tests. 

49. Pennit condition 6.4.3.2.2 also requires detenninations of emission :reductions to 
"be made using operating parameter values (e.g., temperatu:res, flow rates, or vent stream organic 
compounds and concentrations) that represent the conditions that result i.n maximum organic 
emissions, such as when the waste management unit is operating at the highest load or capaeity 
level reasonably expected to occur." 

50. Subsequent to the 2008 CEl, EPA inspectors determined that Respondent had 
insufficient documentation (design or testing infomution) for the condenser and carbon 
adsorption systems that could show that the LTTD system, as configured, was operating as 
designed. 

51. As of the 2007 and 2008 eEls, Respondent had not documented thl~: emission 
reductions achieved by the add-on carbon adsorption system. 

52. Therefore:, EPA alleges that Respondent failed. to comply with Permit conditiom: 
6.4.3.2.5 and 6.4.3.2.2" and 40CFR §§264.1035(b){3) and (4). 

COUNT.§: 

Subpart AA - Carbon Change-out, Recordkeeping 


53. Paragraphs 1 through 52 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

54. As part of its recordkeeping obligations under Permit condition 6.4.3.2.3, the 
facility is required to replace the existing carbon in tlle LTTD system with fresh carbon "at 
regular, predetermined times that is [sic] less than the design carbon replacement interval and 
document such replac~~ment in the recordkeeping for this unit" (emphasis added}. 

55. 40 CFR §264.1033(h) requires the facility to replace the existing c,8lrbon with fre;h 

7 




carbon using one of the following procedures: 

(1) Monitor the concentration level of the organic compounds in the 
exhaust vent stream from the carbon adsorption syst,em on a regular schedule, and 
replace the existing carbon with fresh carbon immed.iately when carbon 
breakthrough is indicated. The monitoring frflquency shall be daily or at an 
interval no greater than 20 percent ofthe tir.ne required to consume the total 
carbon working capacity established as a requirement of§264.1 035(b)(ij~)(iii)(G), 
whichever is longer (emphasis added). 

(2) Replace the existing carbon with fresh carbon at a regular, 
predetennined time interval that is less than the design carbon replacement 
interval established as a requirementof§264.1035(b)(4)(iii)(G)" (emphasis 
added). 

56. 40 CFR §264.1033(i) states "[a]n altel1lative operational or process parameter may 
be monitored if it can be demonstrated that another parameter will ensure that the control device 
is operated in conformance with these standards and the control device's design specifications." 

57. For a carbon adsorption system, 40 CFR §264.1035(b)(4)(iii)(G) requires the 
facility's design analysis to establish: the design outlet org;mic concentration level; capacity of 
the carbon bed; type and working capacity of activated carbon used for the carbon bed; and 
design carbon replacement interval based on the total carbon working capacity i:Jf the control 
device and source operating schedule. This design analysis must be recorded in the facility's 
operating record. 40 CFR §264.l035(b). 

58. Pennit condition 6.4.3.1.1 requires compliance with 40 CFR §264.1035(c), whic:h 
in tum requires the facility to record the date when existing carbon in the control device is 
replaced with fresh carbon (for a carbon adsorption system operated subject to requirements 
specified in §264.1033(g) or §264.1033(h)(2)), or record the date and time when the control 
device is monitored for carbon breakthrough and the monitoring de\ice reading (for a carbon 
adsorption system operated subject to requirements. specified in §264.1033(h)(1)). 

59. Establishment of the carbon working capacity cifthe carbon is a prerequisite to 
monitoring and replacement under 40 CFR §264.1 033(h). 

60. During and subsequent to its inspections of the facility, EPA inspe:ctors determined 
that: 

a. 	 The facility had 110t established the carbon working capacity in the L TTD 
system; 

b. 	 The facility had not used an alternative structure for replacing existing 
carbon with fresh carbon in accordance with 40 CFR §264.1 033 (i) 
because the facility's use of the FID readings in the main stack as an 
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indicator ofwhen the carbon beds were approaching breakthrough was 
unreliable, due to pervasive instances of inaccurate FID readings on the 
main stack, and the fact that the facility had Thot established the caIbon 
working capacity; and 

c. The facility had not established a design carbon replacement inten'al. 

61. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with Pemlit conditions 
6.4.3.1.1 and 6.4.3.2.3; 40 CFR §264.1033(h); and 40 CFR §§264.1035(b)(4)(iii){G) and (c). 

COUN1:.1 

Subpart BB - Equipment Inspection, Monitolring and Recordkeeping 


62. Paragraphs 1 through 61 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if the)' 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

63. Pennit condition 6.4.3.9 requires Respondent to comply with condition 6.4.3.5,. 

64. Pennit condition 6.4.3.5 (Recordkeeping) requires Respondent to maintain (;ertain 
records for each piece of equipment relating to the LTTD system, including: equipment 
identification number and hazardous waste management unit identification, including whether 
the equipment is in a state ofpositive or negative pressure; approximate locations within the 
facility; type of equipment; the hazardous waste state at the equipment; and the method of 
compliance with the standard. 

65. During and subsequent to their inspections of the facility, EPA inspectors 
determined that, willi respect to the equiipment subje(:t to Section 6 of the Permit" llie faciilhy 
failed to: 

a. 	 identify whether each piece of equipment was in a state of positive or negative 

pressure; 


b. 	 reflect equipment changes on the list (e.g. equipment that was removed was not 
reflected on the list, equipment changes (e.g., from a valve to a flange) were not 
reflected, equipment added to the LTTD system was not reflected, etc.); 

c. 	 tag (ie., via identification tags) several pieces of equipment, including two 

condensate pumps; 


d. 	 identify s.everal pieces of equipment with unique identification numbers; and 

e. 	 reflect the correct tag identification number 011 a piece of equipment. 

66. Permit condition 6.4.3.8.2 requires R(~spondel1t to comply with condition 6.4.3.4.2. 
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67. Pennit condition 6.4.3.4.2 requires Respondent to monitor points identified by tag 
numbers in the Process BB Process Flow Diagram. 

68. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with Permit conditions 
6.4.3.5, 6.4.3.9, 6.4.3.4.2 and 6.4.3.8.2. 

COUNTl! 

Subpart DB - Pressure RelJilef Device Settings 


69. Paragraphs 1 through 68 above are inC011?orated herein by this refenmce as ifthey 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

70. Tanks that are part ofthe facility's LTTD system are subject to the (;onditions of 
Section 6.2.6. 

71. Under Permit condition 6.2.6.2, the LTTD system's tanks must be equipped with;;t 
roof or cover designed to meet certain specifications, including those identified in Permit 
condition 6.2.6.2.4, which states: 

" ... a spring-loaded pressure-vacuum relief valve, conservation vent, or similar 
type ofpressure relief device ... shall be designed to operate with no detE:ctahle 
organic emissions when the device is secured in the closed position. The settz'ngs 
at which the device opens shall be established such that the device remains in the 
closed position whenever the tank internal pressure is within the internal pressure 
operating range determined by the owner or operator based on the tank 
manufacturer recommendations, applicable regulations, fire protection and 
prevention codes, standard engineering codes and practices, or other requirements 
for the safe handling of flammable, ignitabli~; explosive, reactive, or hazardous 
materials" (emphasis added). 

72. During the 2007 eEl, EPA inspectors observed that the facility used a common 
pressure relief device for the tanks within the LTTD system. 

73. During and subsequent to the 2007 eEl, EPA inspectors detennined that the facil.ity 
had not established the settings at which the pressure: relief device opens. 

74. Therefore; EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with Pennit conditions 
6.2.6, 6.2.6.2 and 6.2.6.2.4, because it had not established the settings at which the pressure relief 
device opens such that the device remains in the clo8ed position whenever the internal presBUle 
of a tank is within the internal pressure operating range. 
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COUNT 2 

Subpart lBIB - Open-elllded Valve 


75. Paragraphs 1 through 74 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

76. 40 CFR §265.1056(a)(1) requires that open-ended valves or lines shall be equippe,:l 
with a cap, blind flange, plug, or a second valve. 

77. During the 2007 eEI, EPA inspectors observed an open ..ended valve (tag ID 735) 
on a carbon tank in the LTTD area that was not capped or otherwise equipped with a blind 
flange, plug or second valve. 

78. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with 40 CFR 
§265.1056(a)(1). 

COUNT1Q 

Subpart CC - Annual Inspection of Tank Air Emission Control Equipment 


79. Paragraphs 1 through 78 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

80. Permit condition 6.2.6.3 requires the owner or operator of the facility to inspect air 
emission control equipment at the facility at least once every year and to maintai.n a record ofthe 
inspection in accordance with the requirements specified in 40 CFR §264.1089(b). 

81. 40 CFR §264.1 089(b) requires the owner or operator of a tank using air emission 
controls in accordance with 40 CFR §264.1084 to prepare and maintain records for the tank that 
includes certain information, including without limitation: (i) a tank identification number or 
other unique identification description as selected by the owner or operator; (ii) a record for ef.c:h 
inspection required by 40 CFR §264.1084 that includes the date the inspection \\'as conducted 
and infonnation related to any defects detected. 

82. During and subsequent to their inspections ofthe facility, EPA inspectors 
determined that neither the owner nor operator of the facility had performed an annual inspl~c1ion 
of the tank air emission control equipment. 

83. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with Permit condition 
6.2.6.3. 

COUNTS 11.and 12 

Subpart AA - Continuous Monitoring and Operation and Maintenance 


84. Paragraphs 1 through 83 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 
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85. Pennit condition 6.4.3.1 requires the facility to continuously monitor the emissiOn!: 
and the flow rate out of the stack from the LTTD system; it requires the facility to comply with 
the following: 

1. Monitor the Common Exhaust Stack ... in accord with the following p:a.rameters: 

1) A continuous monitoring system meeting the requirements of method 25A 
of 40 CFR part 60 Appendix A. 

2) A continuous monitoring system/as specified in method 2 of 40 CFR 
part 60 Appendix A [type s pitot tube]. 

3) Comply with the emission limits specified in Permit condition 6.4.1 
and 6.4.1.1. 

86. Permit condition 1.6.7 requires the facility to properly operate and maintain all 
facilities and systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) that are installed or 
used by the facility to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Permit. Condition 1.6.7 
states that "proper operation and maintenance" includes effective performance of the faci1itil~s 
and systems. 

87. Subsequent to the 2008 CEl, EPA reviewed the facility's records to verify its 
compliance with the requirements of Pennit conditions 6.4.3.1 and 1.6.7. 

88. During its review ofthe facility's records, EPA detennined that the facility's 
monitoring equipment had inaccurately recorded carbon monoxide concentrations, hydrocalbon 
concentrations, and stack airflows. EPA also determined that monitoring equipment (e.g., 
temperature probes, pressure sensors, etc.) was not working, and that monitoring equipment was 
out of calibration and not recording accurate information. 

89. EPA further identified numerous discre:pancies with the facility's data for the time 
period from January 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008, relating to numerous operating parameters 
recorded by the facility's continuous monitoring system, including inaccurate readings for 
carbon monoxide concentration. hydrocarbon concentration, airflow, soil tempemture, condenser 
air temperature, condenser chill water temperature, and differential pressure. 

90. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondt:nt failed to comply with Pennit conditions 
6.4.3.1 and 1.6.7. 

COUN'(.13 
Cracks in Secondary Containment 

91. Paragraphs 1 through 90 above are in:;orporated herein by this refe:rence as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 
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92. Pennit condition 4.2.1 requires the facility to de:sign. constmct, and operate 
secondary containment systems in accordance with the design plans and descriptions contained 
in Permit Application Section 10, and 40 CPR §264.l93(b)-(f). 

93. Pursuant to 40 CFR §264.193(e)(1)(iii), external liner systems for hazardous waste 
storage tanks must be "free of cracks or gaps." 

94. Permit condition 3.8 requires the facility to constmct and maintain the secondalY 
containment systems for containers in accordance with Section 9.2.4 of the Permit Application 
and the requirements of 40 CFR §264.175. 

95. 40 C'FR §264.175(a) requires the facility's. container storage areas tt) have a 
containment system that is designed and operated in accord,mce with 40 CFR §264.175(b), 
subsection (1) ofwhich requires that "[a] base must underlie the containers which is free of 
cracks or gaps and is sufficiently impervious to contain leaks, spills, and accumulated 
precipitation until the collected material is detected and removed." 

96. During the 2008 eEl, EPA inspectors observed a crack in the secondary 
containmept wall for the tanks in the LTTD system area. 

97. During the 2008 eEl, EPA inspectors observed a crack in the pad of one of the: 
hazardous waste storage areas at the facility. 

98. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with Pennit conditions 
4.2.1 and 3.8. 

COUNT-.:L4 

Subpart CC - Container Level 2 Requirements 


99. Paragraphs I through 98 above are incorporat1ed herein by this refe:rence as iftlley 
were set forth here in their eniirety. 

100. 40 CFR Part 265 Subpart CC, 40 CFR §265.1080, et seq. requires owners and 
operators of facilities that treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste to control air pollutant 
emissions from containers. 

101. Pursuant to 40 CFR §265.1087, there are three levels of air emission controls fo;: 
containers (container levels 1,2 and 3) based on the size of the container, whether the contair.er 
is in light material service, and whether the container is used in a waste stabilization process, 

102. Pursuant to 40 CFR §265.1087(b)(I)(iii), for a container having a design capaciry 
greater than 0.46 cubic meters that is in light material service, the facility shall Gantral air 
pollutant emissions from the container in accordance with the container level 2 standards 
specified in §265.1087(d). 
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103. Container lleve12 controls are applicable to the facility's open bins, also referred to 
as "dinos," in which the facility stores spent carbon generated by the lLTTD system prior to 
treatment in the L TTD system. 

104. 40 CPR §265.1087(d)(I) identifies the following container level 2 controls: 

a. 	 A container that meets the applicable U.S. Department of Transportatiion (DOT) 
regulations on packaging hazardous materials for transportation as specified in 40 
CFR §1087(f). 

b. 	 A container that operates with no detectable organic emissions as de:Ened in 410 
CFR §265.l081 and determined in accordance with the procedure spl;:cified in 40 
CFR §1087(g). 

c. 	 A container that has been demonstrated within the preceding 12 mont~h.s to be 
vapor-tight by using 40 CFR part 60, appendix A,-Method 27 in accordan,:;e with 
the procedure specified in 40 CFR § 1087(b). 

105. During and subsequent to the 2008 CEl, EPA inspectors determined that the 
facility: 

a. 	 was not using a container meeting applicable DOT regulations (40 CFR 
§26S.1087(d)(1)(i»); 

b. 	 was not testing the dinos in order to ensure that no detectable emissions were 
being released from the dinos (40 CFR §265.1087(d)(1)(ii)); and 

c. 	 had not demonstrated the dinos were vapor-tight (40 CPR §265.1087(d)(1)(iii). 

106. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed to comply with 40 CFR 
§265.1087(b)(l)(iii). 

COUNT 15 

TSCA Marking Violation 


107. Paragraphs 1 through 106 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

108. "PCB container" means any package, can, bottle, bag, barrel, drum, tank, or Dth~r 
device that contains PCBs or PCB Articles and whose surface(s) has been in direct contact with 
PCBs. 40 CPR §761.3. 

109. PCB containers shall be marked in aCI~ordance with 40 CPR §761.45. 40 CPR 
§761.40(a)(1). 
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110. During the TSCA inspection, EPA insp,ec:tors observed a drum at tht:: facility that 
contained PCB waste. 

111. The drum lis a ''PCB container," as that teJnn is defined at 40 CFR §761.3. 

112. The drum was not marked with a Large PCB Mark, "ML'" in accordance with 40 
CFR §761.45(a). 

113. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent's failure to mark the drum I::ontaining PC S, 
waste in accordance wllth 40 CFR §761.45 constitutes a violation of40 CFR §761.40(a)(1) a:l1d 
Section 15(1)(C) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2614(1)(C). 

COUNT 16 

TSCA Approval Violations 


114. Paragraphs 1 through 113 above are in;;:orporated herein by this reft:rence as if thE)' 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

115. "Chemical waste landfill" means a landfill at which protection against risk of injury 
to health or the environment from migration ofPCBs to land, water, or the atmosphere is 
provided from PCBs and PCB Items deposited thereill1 by locating, engineering and operating 1he 
landfill as specified in 40 CFR §761.75. 40 CFR §761.3. 

116. A chemical waste landfill used for the disposal of PCBs and PCB Items shall be 
approved by the EPA Regional Administrator pursuant to 40 CFR §761.75(c). The landfill shall 
meet all of the requirements specified in 40 CFR §761.75(b), unless a waiver is nbtained, and 
shall meet any other requirement that may be prescribed pursuant to 40 CFR §761.75(c)(3). 4'') 

CFR §761.75(a). 

117. The facility is a "chemical waste landfill," as that term is defined at 40 CFR §76L3. 

118. Respondent has a written approval for tile facility from EPA Region IX pursuant to 
40 CFR §761.7S(c) ("the Approval"). 

119. Section E.l 0 ofthe Approval required the OWll1er or operator of the facility to 
submit a monthly written report that includes a description of any event that is not nonnal to tbe 
operation of the facility, "such as accidents, spills, leaks, or other uncontrolled discharges" of 
PCBs. 

120. Section E.lO of the Approval is a requirement prescribed pursuant to 40 CFR 
§761.75(c)(3). 

121. Between February 6, 2006 and February 11, 2008, six (6) incident8 of spills, leaks, 
or other uncontrolled discharges of PCBs occurred at the facility. 

15 



122. Between February 6, 2006 and February 11,2008, Respondent did n.ot include 
descriptions of the six spills, leaks., or other uncontrolled discharges of PCBs that occurred in 
five (5) monthly written reports. 

123. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent's failures to comply with S~:ction E.IO of 
the Approval between February 6,2006 and February 11,2008 constitute five violations of 40 
CFR §761.75(a) and Section 15(1)(C) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2614(1)(C). 

COUNT IZ 

TSCA Continued U~e Violation 


124. Paragraphs 1 through 123 above are incorporated herein by this ref€:frence as ift.hey 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

125. No person may use any PCB or PCB Item, regardless of concentra6on, in any 
manner other than in a totally enclosed manner within the United States, unless authorized under 
40 CFR §761.30 or excepted under 40 CFR §761.20(a). 40 CFR §761.20(a); See also Section 
6(e)(2)(A) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2605(e)(2)(A). 

126. A "totally enclosed manner" means any manner that will ensure no exposure of 
human beings or the environment to any concentration ofPGBs. 40 CFR §761.3. 

127. Any person may use porous surfaces contaminated by spills ofliquid PCBs at 
concentrations in exc<::ss of 10 micrograms per 100 square centimeters (10J.lg/lOOcm2) for the 
remainder of the useful life of the surface and subsurface material if the conditions of 40 CFR 
§761.30(p) areroet. 40 CFR §761.30(p). 

128. "Porous surface" means any surface that allows PCBs to penetrate or pass into 
itself, including, but not limited to, concrete or cement. 40 CFR §761.3. 

129. During the TSCA inspection, EPA inspectors collected wipe samples fi'om the fl:llor 
of the PCB storage area that were later found to contain PCBs at concentrations in excess of 
10~g/100cm2, ranging from 12.2 to 8,700 J.lg/100cm2

• 

130. The floor of the PCB storage area is a "porous surface," as that term is defined a: 40 
CFR §761.3. 

131. From June 24, 2008 to March 20, 2009, Respondent used the floor in the PCB 
storage area without meeting the conditions for use under 40 CFR §761.30(p). 

132. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent's use ofthe floor in the PCB storage arl~a 
without meeting the conditions for use under 40 CFR §761.30(p) constitutes a violation of 40 
CFR §§761.20(a) and §761.30(p), and Sections 6(e)(2)(A) and 15(l)(C) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. 
§§2605(e)(2)(A) and 2614(1)(C). 
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COUNT 1~! 

TSCA Improper Disposal Violation 


133. Paragraphs 1 through 132 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they 
were set forth here in their entirety. 

134. "Disposal" means intentionally or accidentally to discard, throwaway or otherwise 
complete or tenninate the useful life of PCBs or PCB Items. Disposal includes spills, leaks and 
other uncontrolled discharges of PCBs as well as actions related to containing, transporting, 
destroying, degrading, decontaminating, or confining PCBs and PCB Items. 40 CFR §761.3. 

135. Any person storing or disposing of PCB waste must do so in accordance with 
Subpart D of 40 CFR Part 761. 40 CFR §761.50(a). 

136. Under 40 CFR §761.50(a)(4), spills and other uncontrolled discharges of PCBs at 
concentrations of"2: 50 parts per million (ppm) constitute the disposal ofPCBs, and such spills . 
and other uncontrolled discharges are not disposals in accordance with Subpart D of 40 CFR Part 
761. 

137. During the inspection of the facility on June 24, 2008, EPA inspectors collected soil 
samples from the facility tank farm that were later found to contain PCBs at concentrations 
ranging from 58 ppm to 900 ppm. 

138. The PCBs at concentrations in excess of 50 ppm in the soil at the faGility tank fann 
resulted from spills and other uncontrolled discharges of PCBs at concentrations greater than 50 
ppm. 

139. The disposal of PCBs in the soil in the f~cility tank farm was not in accordance with 
Subpart D of 40 CFR Part 761. 

140. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent's failure to dispose of PCBs in accordan::le 
with Subpart D of 40 CFR Part 761 constitutes a violation of 40 CFR §761.50(a) and Section 
lS(l)(C) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2614(1)(C). 

E. CIVIL PENALTY 

141. Section 3008(g) ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6928(g), as adjusted by the Federal Civil 
Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990,28 U.s.C. §2461, and the Debt Collection 
Improvement Act of1996, 31 U.S.C. §3701 (see 61 Fed. Reg. 69360 (Dec. 31, 1996»), 
authorizes a civil penalty ofup to $32,500 per day for violations of Subtitle C ofRCRA, 42 
U.S.C. §6921 et seq., occurring between March 15, 2004 and January 12, 2009 (69 Fed. Reg. 
7121 (Feb. 13,2004)), and a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day for such violations after 
January 12,2009 (73 Fed. Reg. 75,340 (Dec. 11,2008)). See 40 CFR §19.4. Additionally, 
Section 16(a) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2615(a), as adjusted by the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation 
Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. §2461 , and the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 
31 U.S.C. §3701 (see 61 Fed. Reg. 69360 (Dec. 31, 1996»), authorizes a civil ptmalty notto 
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, exceed $32,500 per day for each violation occurring hetweenMarch 15,2004 and January 12, 
2009, and a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day for such violations after January 12,2009 (73 
Fed. Reg. 75,340 (Dec. 11,2008)); 40 CFR §19.4. 

142. Based upon the facts alleged herein and upon those factors that EPA must consider 
pursuant to: Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6928(a)(3), including the seriousness of 
the violations and any good faith efforts by Respondent to comply with applicable requirements; 
Section 16(a) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. §2615(a), including the nature, circumstances, 'extent, and 
gravity of the violations and, with respect to the violator, abilit'J to pay, effect on ability to 
continue to do business, any history ofprior such violations, the degree of culpability, as well as 
such other matters as justice may require; as well as those factors in the June 2003 "RCRA Civil 
Penalty Po Hcy" and the April 199.0 "PCB Penalty Policy", EPA proposes that Respondent be 
assessed FOUR HUNDRED NINETY~SEVEN THOUSAND NlNE HUNDRED. EIGHTY­
TWO DOLLARS ($497,982) as the civil penalty for the violations alleged herein. The proposed 
penalties were calculated in accordance with the June 2003 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy and April 
1990 PCB Penalty Policy. 

F. ADMISSION§ AND WAIVERS OF RIGI[fS 

143. For the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits to the jurisdictional 
allegations of facts and law set forth. in Sections Band C ofthis CAIFO. Respondent consents to 
and agrees not to contest EPA's jurisdiction and authority to enter into and issue this CAIFO and 
to enforce its terms. Further, Respondent will not contest EPA's jurisdiction and authority to 
compel compliance with this CAIFO in any enforcement proceedings, either administrative or 
judicial, or to impose sanctions for violations of this CAfFO. 

144. Respond(;;:J[1t neither admits nor denies any allegations of fact or law set forth in 
Paragraph 14 or Section D of this CAIFO. Respondell1t hereby waives any rights Respondent 
may have to contest the allegations set forth in this CAIFO, waives any rights Re:spondent may 
have to a hearing on any issue relating to the factuallllllegations or legal conclusions set fbrth in 
this CAIFO, including without limitation a hearing pursuant to Section 3008(b) ofRCRA, 42 
U.S.C. §6928(b), and hereby consents to the issuance of this CAIFO without adjudication. In 
addition, Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to appeal the Final Order 
attached to this Consent Agreement and made part of this CAIFO. 

G. PARTIES BOPND 

145. This CNFO shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its agents, 
successors and assigns and upon all persons acting under or for Respondent, until such time as 
the civil penalty required under Sections E and H has been paJld in accordance with Section H. 
At such time as those matters are concluded, this CNFO shall terminate and constitute full 
settlement ofthe violations alleged herein. 

146. No change in ownership or corporate, p.artnershiJP or legal status relating to the 

facility will in any way alter Respondent's obligations and responsibilities under this CAIFO. 
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147. Until the termination of this CAIFO, Respondent 8hall give notice ofthis CA/FO to 
any successor in interest prior to transfer of ownership or operation ofthe facility and shall notify 
EPA at least seven (7) days prior to such transfer. 

148. The undersigned representative ofRespondent hereby certifies he or she is fully 
authorized by Respondent to enter into this CAlFO, to execute and to lega.lly bind Respondent to 
it. 

H. PAYMENT OF CIVIL PENALTY 

149. Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay a civil penalty of 
FOUR HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED EIGHTY-TWO 
DOLLARS ($497,982), in full settlement of the federal civil penalty claims set fi)rth in this 
CA/FO. 

150. Respondent shall submit payment of the FOUR HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN 
THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED EIGHTY-TWO DOLLARS ($497,982) civil penalty within 
thirty (30) calendar days of the Effective Date of this CA/FO. (As defined in Paragraph 164, the 
Effective Date ofthis CAIFO is the date the Regional Hearing Clerk files the Fin.al Order signe.d 
by the Regional Judicial Officer.) All payments shall indicate the name of the faGili~J, EPA 
identification number of the facility, Respondent's name and address, and the EPA docket 
number of this action. 

151. All penalties shan be paid by remitting a certified or cashier's check, including the 
name and docket number of this case, for the amount, payable to "Treasurer, United States (If 
America," or be paid by one of the other methods listed below, and sent as follo'}rs: 

Regular Mail: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Fines and Penalties 

Cincinnati Finance Center 

PO Box 979077 

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 


Overnight Mail: 

U.S. Ban1e 

1005 Convention Plaza 

Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 

ATTN Box 979077 

St. Louis, MO 63101 


19 



Wire Transfers: 

Wire transfers must be sent directly to the Fed.eral Reserve Bank in New 'York City witt. 
the following information: 

Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York 
ABA:::: 021030004 
Account === 68010727 
SWIFT address =FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Stree:!t 
New York, NY 10045 
Field Tag 4200 ofthe Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 Environmental 
Protection Agency" 

Automated Clearinghouse (ACH) for receiving US currency (~llso known.as REX or 
remittance express): . 

PNCBank 
808 17th Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20074 
ABA = OS 1036706 
Transaction Code 22 - checking 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Account 31006 

CTXFormat 


On Line PaY!Jl!ent: 

This payment option can be accessed from t1:l(~ information below: 
. www.pay.gov 

Enter "sfo1.1" in the search field 
Open form and complete required fields 

If clarification regarding a particular method ofpayment remittance is needed, contact the EPA 
Cincinnati Finance Center at 513-487-2091. 

A copy of each check, or notification that the payment has been made by one of the other 
methods listed above, including proof of the date payment was made, shall be s{mt with a 
transmittal letter, indicating Respondent's name, the case name, and case docket number, to: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
Office of Regional Counsel (ORC-3) 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 


and 
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Kaoru Morimoto (WST-3) 

Waste Management Division 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 


152. In accordance with the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1982 and U.S. 
Treasury directive (TFRM 6-8000), the payment must be received within thirty (30) calendar 
days of the Effective Date of this CAIFO to avoid adclitional charges. Ifpayment is not receive:! 
within thirty (30) calendar days, interest will accrue from the Effective Date of this CAIFO at the 
current rate published by the United States Treasury as described in 40 CFR § 13.11. A late 
penalty charge of$15.00 will be imposed after thirty (30) calendar days with an additional 
$15.00 charge for each subsequent 30-day period. A 6% pel' annum penalty will further apply on 
any principal amount not paid within ninety (90) calendar days of the due date. Respondent 
further will be liable for stipulated penalties as set f01th below for any payment not received by 
its due date. 

I. DELAY IN PERFORl\1lANCE/STIPULATJED lE.NALTIE.§. 

153. In the event Respondent fails to meet any requirement set forth in thiis CAlFO, 
Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties as set forth below: 

For failure to submit a payment to EPA by the time required in this CAlFO: ONE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) per day for the first to fifteenth day of 
delay, ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,500.00) per day for 
the sixteenth to thirtieth day of delay, and TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($2,500.00) per day for each day of delay thereafter. 

154. All penalties shall begin to accrue on the date that performance is due or a violation 
occurs, and shall continue to accrue through the final day of correction of the noncomplianc(~. 
Nothing herein shall prevent the simultaneous accrual of separate penalties for separate 
violations. EPA will notify Respondent when penalties are due. 

155. All penalties owed to EPA under this S()·ction shall be due within thirty (30) days J,f 

receipt of a notification ofnoncompliance. Such notification shall describe the noncompliance 
and shall indicate the amount ofpenalties due. Interest at the current rate published by the 
United States Treasury, as described at 40 CFR §13.11, shall begin to accrue on the unpaid 
balance at the end ofthe thirty-day period. 

156. All penalties shall be made payable by certified or cashier's check to "Treasure.r, 
United States of America", or by one of the other methods described in Paragraph 151, and 8h[~1l 
be remitted as described in Paragraph 151. 
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157. The stipulated penalties set forth in this Section do not preclude EPA from pursuit1.g 
any other remedies or sanctions which may be available to EPA by reason ofRespondent's 
failure to comply with any of the requirements of this CAJFO. 

J. RESERVATIQN OF lUGHTS 

158. In accordance with 40 CFR §22.l8(c), this CNFO only resolves Respondent's 
liability for federal civil penalties for the violations and facts specifically alleged in Slxtion ]) of 
this CAIFO. EPA hereby reserves (i) all of its statutory and regulatory powers, authorities, 
rights, and remedies, both legal and equitable, including the right to require that Respondent 
perform tasks in addition to those required by this CA/FO, and (ii) all of its statutory and 
regulatory powers, autlllorities, rights and remedies, both legal and equitable, which may pertain 
to Respondent's failure to comply with any of the requirements of this CNFO, including withc,ut 
limitation, the assessment ofpenalties under Section 3008(c) cfRCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6928(c). 
This CAIFO shall not be construed as a covenant not to sue, release, waiver or limitation of any 
rights, remedies, powers or authorities, civil or criminal, under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liabili1:'j Act of 1980, as amended {"CERCLA"), or 
any other statutory, regulatory or common law enforcement authority of the Unil~~d States. 

159. Compliance by Respondent with the tenns of this CNFO shall not relieve 
Respondent of its obligations to comply with RCRA, TSCA or any other applicable local, Stat,~ 
or federal1aws and regulations. 

160. The entry of this CAIFO and Respondent's consent to comply shall not limit OIL 

otherwise preclude EPA from taking additional enforcement actions should EPA detennine that 
such actions are warranted except as it relates to Respondent's liability for federal civil penalties 
for the specific alleged violations and facts as set fotth in Section D of this CAiFO. 

161. This CAfFO is not intended to be nor shall it be construed as a pennit. This CA/!?O 
does not relieve Respondent of any obligation to obtain and comply with any local, State or 
federal pennits. 

K. ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS 

162. Each patty shall bear its own attorneys' fees, costs, and disbursements incurred h 
this proceeding. 

L. MISCELLAriffiOUS 

163. The headings in this CAIFO are for cOTlvenience of reference only and shall not 
affect interpretation of this CNFO. 
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164. The Effective Date of this CAIFO is the date thi~ Final Order, signed by the 
Regional Judicial Officer, is filed by the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

IT IS SO AGREED. 

US ECOLOGY NEVADA, INC. 

(.\ \ )... \ d-a \0 


Date 

Title: __ ...
'-"'l....:~_--"C=~¥-.QN;!...""""'=\..'-"~,q,~'-"~'--_ 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

Name: 

£tp;ft:-­

Waste Management Division 
United States Environmental Protection Agency, 
Region IX 
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FlNALORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this Consent Agreement and Final Order Pursuant to 40 CFR 
Sections 22.13 and 22.18 (U.S. EPA Docket Nos. RCRA~09..2010~-\nd TSCA-09-2010-~) 
be entered and that US Ecology Nevada, Inc; pay a civil penalty ofFOUR HUNDRED 
NINETY-SEVEN THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED EIGHTY -TWO DOLLARS ($497,982), duf.! 
within thirty (30) days from the Effective Date of this Consent Agreement and Final Order. In 
accordance with Section H of this CA/FO, payment must be made by: ce11ified or cashier's 
check, made payable to the Treasurer of the United States of America, and sent to the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency Cincim1ati Finance Center (ifby regular mail), or sent to U.S. 
Bank (ifby overnight mail); wire transfer sent to the Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York; 
remittance express sent to PNC Bank; or through online payment (www.pay.gov). A copy of 
each check, or notification that the payment has been made by one of t.he other methods listed 
above, including proofof the date payment was made, shall be sent to the EP A Region IX 
address specified in Section H of this CAIFO within such 30-day period. 

This Final Order sha111be effective upon filing by the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

~~~~':/2--­
Date 	 Steven Jawgiel ,/ 


Regional Judicial Of 

United States Environmentill Protection Agency, 

Region IX 


r 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


I hereby certify that the original ofthe foregoing Consent Ag,'reement and Final Order was fi1,~d 
with the Regional Hearing Clerk. Region ][X. and that a copy was sent, certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to: 

Bob Marchand 

General Manager 

US Ecology Nevada, Inc. 

P.O. Box 578 

Beatty, NY 89003 


and 

Gary J. Smith, Esq. 

Beveridge & Diamond, PC 

456 Montgomery Street, Suite 1800 

San Francisco, CA 94104 


f7¥ ~ c;;r~V0H ~?SG-Y t P+/C­

Date Hazardous Waste Management Divisicl]l 
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